
ADDENDUM #1  

ITB/RFP NUMBER:  2022022-CM-B 

Renovations to City Hall ITB 

DATE:  April 25, 2022 

TO:  All Potential Bidders/Offerors 

City of Harrisonburg’s ITB, is modified as follows: 

On April 21, 2022 at 11:00am local time a mandatory pre-bid meeting was held for the above-referenced 

solicitation. Attached and made part of this addendum is the sign-in sheet from this meeting. Below are 

highlights, clarifications and questions and answers from the pre-bid meeting. 

Highlights & Clarifications 

• Take note of project phasing.  Phasing diagram is on the Cover Sheet of the drawings.

• The goal is to have minimum time of actual construction; however, if the 60 day timeframe is driving up

the price of the bid significantly, the City wishes to know as soon as possible.

• City will pay for purchased materials and stored on-site prior to July 5, 2022.  Storing on-site will save

money and be easier to verify for payment.

• The City intends to have a stepped Notice to Proceed (NTP), giving the contractor the ability to perform

pre-construction work and materials purchases in advance of the July 5, 2022 construction start date

(another NTP issued).

• The contractor should make the City aware of any material delays that will impact project timeline

immediately.

• The truck in the garage will be removed during the time of this construction project to allow for storage

space.  It was noted that the garage space has a door for access, heater in the space if needed, and is

close access to the elevator.

• A small portion of project will require work that will run through the neighboring Human Resources

office space.  The contractor is expected to give advance notice of when this space will need to be

occupied so it can be best coordinated and communicated to the Human Resources office.

• It is expected for the contractor to reuse glass plates around the stairwell, floor tiles, doors, and hardware

as-needed.  Replace glass railing panels as required.

Existing doors are Algoma.  Existing hardware is Best Access Systems, Heavy Duty M 

(mortised) hardware by Stanley.  Levers are 40H Series, Lever #14 with Rose-H, both with 626  

Satin Chrome Finish. 

Questions & Answers 

1. Question:  Regarding the project phasing, is it expected for the Contractor to install the floor (carpet) at

the end of each phase and remove before starting the next phase (i.e. drywall work)?

Answer:  No; it is acceptable if the Contractor does not finish the floor at the end of each phase in the

new office areas, as the spaces will not be occupied prior to September 5, 2022.  It is expected that the

currently-occupied corner office should be left in a condition to allow the employee to remain in the

space and work for as long as possible during project construction.
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2. Question:  Are the carpet squares expected to be re-used? 

 

Answer:  Yes, reuse the carpet tiles where you can.  The City also has 55 extra carpet squares already 

purchased and stored.  Attached is a photo of the label on the boxes. We also have one box of the beige 

rubber wall base. Photo also attached. 

 

It would be a good idea for the contractor to check to make sure they can purchase the carpet needed for 

the renovation, regardless of whether we have 55 squares available in storage. We would want to know 

early on if this carpet color is no longer manufactured or if there are supply chain delays, and it may 

inform our approach. We would prefer for the contractor to re-use as much of the existing carpet as 

possible, with replacement squares coming from what we have in storage. 

 

At the completion of the project, the City would like to have at least two (2) boxes left behind by the 

contractor if they decide to use what we have in storage. 

 

3. Question:  What is the height from the floor to the roof deck?  

 

Answer:  The height from finished floor to the bottom of drywall above is 10’-9 1/2".  The drywall is 

applied directly to the bottom of the roof trusses.  The suspended ceiling height is 8’-0” a.f.f. 

 

4. Question:  Who did the City use for sprinkler installation work previously? 

 

Answer:  Liberty Fire Solutions 

 

5. Question:  Will the City designate a parking area and staging area for the contractor? 

 

Answer:  Yes.  The garage space and area in front of it is reserved for the contractor.  The City will also 

provide parking spaces in the Municipal Lot for contractor designated parking. 

 

6. Question:  Are the permit fees waived for this project? 

 

Answer:  Yes.  

 

7. Question:  How much ceiling in the lobby area is assumed to be torn out? 

 

Answer:  That decision is up to the General Contractor (Bidder).  Keep in mind, the wall will be 

installed at a 45 degree angle to the ceiling, so it is likely to require a saw-tooth approach. 

 

8. Question:  How much of the stairwell can be blocked off?  Can the Contractor leave scaffolding up from 

day-to-day at any point? 
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Answer:  The contractor should try to leave the stairwell open as much as possible.  Depending on the 

timeframe, the City may be able to temporarily re-route staff and the public to the other 2 stairwells.  

This would require coordination and advance planning between the City and the contractor. 

 

9. Question:  Regarding the Electrical Room on the second floor, - 3 5/8” fur or 1 5/8”?   

 

Answer:  The City’s preference is not to have surface mounted conduit in the HR lobby. The furring on 

the second floor elevator shaft wall in the electric room is 7/8” thick with 1/2" drywall.  There should be 

ample ceiling space, however, to run wiring to a location where it can extend up through the floor above 

and into an existing (or new) wall. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

All other requirements, terms and conditions of the ITB/RFP remain unchanged.  

 

Addendum page must be signed and returned with your bid/proposal to acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

Authorized Signature 

 

 

 

By:  Shane B. Smith 

        Procurement Manager 
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